Der<son

CITY OF DENISON
HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Tuesday, November 7, 2023

After determining that a quorum is present, the Historic Preservation Board of the City of Denison,
Texas will convene in a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, November 7, 2023, at 12:00 PM in the
Council Chambers at City Hall, 300 W. Main Street, Denison, Texas at which the following items
will be considered:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A

Swear in and administer oath to Rhonda Borgne as a member of the Historic Preservation
Board.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Citizens may speak on items listed on the Agenda. A “Request to Speak Card” should be
completed and returned to the City Clerk upon arrival, prior to the Board reaching the Public
Comment section of the agenda. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless
otherwise required by law. Comments related to the Public Hearings listed below, will be heard
when the specific hearing starts.

3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION

A.

B.

O

<

m

Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on approving the Minutes from the
October 3, 2023, Meeting.

Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on approving the Minutes from the
October 17, 2023, Meeting.

Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on proposed storefront and adding
paint. (2022-065H/2023-046H)

Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on adding an awning to the exterior of
231 W. Main Street.

Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on adding signage to the exterior of
418 W. Main.



E. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on renovations to the exterior of
319 W. Chestnut Street.
G. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on roof replacement of

427 W. Woodard Street.

H. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on the addition of a sign, awning, and
ramp into the building at the rear exterior of 422 W. Main Street.

4. STAFF UPDATES

A. Staff will present the final proposed Design Guidelines and Historic Preservation
Ordinance for review with only minor clerical changes from that approved by Historic
Preservation Board.

5. ADJOURNMENT
CERTIFICATION

| do hereby certify that a copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted on the front windows of
City Hall readily accessible to the general public at all times and posted on the City of Denison
website on the 3" day of November 2023.

Karen L. Avery, Deputy City Clerk

In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, the City of Denison will provide for reasonable
accommodations for persons attending Historic Preservation Board Meeting. To better serve you, requests should be
received 48 hours prior to the meetings. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 903-465-2720, Ext: 2437.




%em

CITY OF DENISON
HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD MEETING
MINUTES

Tuesday, October 3, 2023

1. CALL TO ORDER

Announce the presence of a quorum.

Vice Chair Solomon called the meeting to order at 12:00 PM. Board Members present were
Linda Anderson, Kurt Cichowski, and Steve Riley.

Staff present were Donna Dow, Main Street Director; Grant Yoder, Main Street Coordinator;
Mary Tate, Director of Development; Dianne York, Planner; Robert Lay,
Neighborhood Services Manager; and Chris Wallentine, City Clerk.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No Request to Speak Cards were received at this point in the meeting. Therefore, no public
comments were received.

3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION

A. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on approving the Minutes from the
September 5, 2023, Meeting.

Board Action

Upon Board Member Cichowski’s request, correct the date on Page 6 of the Minutes, Item
3.E to state “And there is still a lot of information in the National Registry from 1983.”
instead of ““...from the 1960’s.”

On motion by Board Member Anderson, seconded by Board Member Riley, the
Historic Preservation Board approved the September 5, 2023, Meeting Minutes, with
correction noted by Board Member Cichowski.

B. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on proposed storefront and windows
and adding paint at 501 W. Main Street. (2022-065H/2023-046H)

Page 1 of 8



October 3, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 2 of 8

Board Action

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that that
the Applicant previously received approval for a new storefront and windows.
The Applicant would like to modify their request to be approved as installed. Ms. Dow
stated that the Applicant is here to speak on the item and wishes to discuss the
appropriateness of the paint. Board Member Cichowski inquired as to whether a
“stop work™ order was given since it is not according to what was approved. Ms. Dow
stated in the affirmative and that they wanted them to proceed as much as they could
without touching items that were inconsistent with what was approved. She stated that
they did some brick work on the back of the building that was just repair and masonry
work. Mr. Don Day then came forward and provided the following information for the

record:
Name: Mr. Don Day
DFA, LTD.
Address: 110 E. Louisiana Street

McKinney, TX 75069

Mr. Day stated that the building at 501 W. Main Street was originally painted white and at
some point after that, someone sandblasted the building. Mr. Day stated that when the
building was sandblasted, it removed mortar between the joints. After he purchased the
building, they realized that the east wall was bulging out (approximately 4”). Mr. Day
stated that he contacted the structural engineer and had him look at it and his comment was
that the wall would eventually fall as it was structurally unsound. He stated that in order to
keep the building from falling, they installed concrete buttresses (and steel) on the inside
and tied the old wall to the new structural element (steel plates). Mr. Day stated that he
never intended to paint the building, but now that it has steel plates, he feels it necessary
and it makes more sense because that is the only way to hide the steel plates. Mr. Day
stated that they had to take out the old wooden windows (which were originally painted
white) because they were falling apart and in very bad shape. Mr. Day stated that the staff
report refers to the windows as “vinyl,” however, they were actually aluminum. He stated
that what he is asking permission for is to replace the wooden windows with modern
windows and paint the building so that he can hide the steel plates. The color that he is
proposing to paint the building is the same color as used on the 34 Chophouse building
(331 W. Main Street) — red with white trim.

Board Member Cichowski stated that as he read the Applicant’s October 2022 submission,
Mr. Day already knew that he was going to have to do structural work on the building —
however, at that time there was no intent to paint the building. Mr. Cichowski stated that
the issue he is having is that the windows and storefront are not as the renderings displayed
in the October 2022 submission and asked why. Mr. Day stated that when they went to
purchase the windows for the building, they were told the white aluminum windows were
what they had in stock and what they could get. If they wanted to wait for the (inaudible)
windows, it would take months and he chose not to wait, noting that since the windows



October 3, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 3 of 8

had previously been white, it seems to be historic — replacing white windows with white
windows. Board Member Cichowski inquired of Mr. Day if he was aware of the current
guidelines and ordinances, to which Mr. Day answered in the affirmative. Mr. Day also
noted that he has invested several million dollars in his shop. Board Member Cichowski
inquired of Mr. Day why he is now electing to do work that is different from his previous
renderings. Mr. Day stated that the front elevation is the same and he was unaware that
the door was off-center, noting that he missed the door being moved in the renderings.
Mr. Cichowski once again questioned Mr. Day on why his plans are not in accordance with
what he submitted and Mr. Day once again stated that he always thought the doors would
be in the center and was unaware they were off-centered. Mr. Day stated that he made a
mistake in missing that. Mr. Cichowski stated that he believes that if Mr. Day would have
had the elevations in the renderings, as depicted today, there probably would have been a
very different discussion other than it was in October 2022 because — as depicted today —
it is not a historic representation of the time period from that building. Discussion ensued
amongst Director Dow, Mr. Day, and the Board Members regarding the recess, bulkheads,
etc. Board Member Anderson inquired of Mr. Day — on the assumption that there is a
middle ground on which the Board and he can agree — what he would suggest as a way to
rectify the situation to render it, if not the same, then much more like the initial plans that
were proposed and approved — and not executed. Mr. Day stated that he has built the
building the best way he believes it should be built. He further stated that if he has to change
out the windows, it will delay the project several months and he said he would have to shut
the project down and get back to it when he was able. Mr. Day stated that taking out the
storefront again would take several months and cost thousands of dollars. Mr. Day
reiterated that the building is on the verge of falling down but said he would let it sit like it
is for the foreseeable future, if he had to. Ms. Dow asked if the Board would allow her just
to speak on the storefront by itself. She asked if there was any way to build bulkheads by
using the doors that are already there, noting that she does not know if this would satisfy
the Board on this item or not. Mr. Day stated that, with regard to a retail store, the more
glass you have in front of the store the more successful it will be. Discussion ensued
regarding the installation of a bulkhead and Mr. Day stated that he believes he could build
an 18” bulkhead without any problem and Vice Chair Solomon stated that she believes it
could be done without removing any glass. In response to Ms. Dow’s inquiry, Mr. Day
said that the window material was called “anodized aluminum.” Vice Chair Solomon
stated that she personally does not have a problem with the windows because the majority
of the windows on that block are white. Board Member Riley stated that the windows were
probably fine when the building was white, but now it has been sandblasted and affected
the structure and the brick integrity is compromised (more porous than ever). Mr. Riley
believes it is more critical now — than ever - to paint the building to protect the brick, so he
does not feel that the color is as critical as it was before. Board Member Cichowski inquired
about the style of the windows and Ms. Dow stated that Rosin Consultant suggested
1/1 sash windows, rather than 6/1. Vice Chair Solomon inquired as to whether the windows
have to be functional and Mr. Day stated that the fire marshal advised them to be functional.
Board Member Riley asked staff to confirm that if the bulkhead is corrected in the way that
the Board was discussing, would the Applicant be able to proceed with the project.



October 3, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 4 of 8

Board Member Cichowski asked if it would be appropriate to table the matter until the next
meeting on October 17, 2023, to see what the plans are for the bulkhead, the windows, and
the samples of paint being proposed. Ms. Dow asked if the Board was interested in
allowing the Applicant to paint the building, to which Board Member Riley stated that he
believes the building will have to be painted in order to be sealed in some way. He believes
it is too porous after being sandblasted and will always soak up water if not sealed in some
manner. Board Member Cichowski stated that he would like to table the item and have the
Applicant bring back renderings of the bulkheads, windows, and sample paint, in
accordance with a Certificate of Appropriateness process, noting that it is not what was
approved so he would like to see what the Applicant is going to do before it is approved
again. Mr. Day said that, if possible, he would like to get approval at least on the windows
so he can start on the inside as they have to be trimmed both on the inside and the outside.
Mr. Day said that he is ok with getting the renderings that were requested but he would like
to start on the windows as soon as possible. Vice Chair Solomon asked Mr. Day about the
transom windows as it appeared that three transom style windows were approved, but it
now appears there are no transom windows. Mr. Day stated that he would have to look
back at the plans as he does not recall. He stated that if he had to put in transom windows
it would have to tear the whole storefront out and start over. Vice Chair Solomon stated
that it might be possible to add faux transom windows. Board Member Cichowski
reminded Mr. Day that the signage would still need to come back before the Board.
Mr. Day stated that the space has not been leased yet and understands that anyone that
leases the building will need to come back before the Board for signage.

On motion by Board Member Riley, seconded by Board Member Cichowski, the
Historic Preservation Board approved the windows as discussed and outlined in the
meeting today (and on the application); and tabled the issues of the storefront and paint -
with renderings and a new paint color palette to be provided at the October 17, 2023,
Historic Preservation Board Meeting.

Board Member Anderson stated that she feels compelled, once again, to bemoan the fact
that work has proceeded, unlike what was approved, and in part, without a permit. She
stated that this has happened over and over again and each time she voices her displeasure,
noting that she attempts to keep her displeasure from being more vehement each time it
happens. She stated that Mr. Day and his work in the City are respected, however, as a
subset of that, Mr. Day, with his experience, should be aware of the necessity to follow
procedures, policies, and permitting, particularly in the Historic District where the
standards are higher and must be maintained and enforced. Ms. Anderson implored
everyone involved in this process that we do not see this happen again and again.

Board Member Cichowshi stated that — to reinforce what Board Member Anderson just
stated — he would like to show Mayor Janet Gott’s video that is on the Historic Preservation
website. [Main Street Coordinator Grant Yoder presented the video to the Board and
audience. Board Member Cichowski requested that the video be shown at the 340 mark
for the guidelines, processes, and approvals of the Historic Preservation Board.] Mr. Day
thanked the Board for their time.



October 3, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 5 of 8

C. Receive a report and hold a discussion on the historic marker proposal.

Board Action

Board Member Cichowski presented this agenda item. Board Member Cichowski
presented renderings of two markers within the City. Mr. Cichowski stated that one of the
markers is from the Four Lions Buildings (501 W. Main Street), noting that it is larger than
what they envisioned. Mr. Cichowski also showed the plaque located by the “All Board”
statue at the Katy Depot (with the woman and child running to the train), noting that this
one would probably be the size they are looking at; however, this particular one might be
more expensive because of the Denison150 Sesquicentennial logo. Mr. Cichowski stated
that there were previous discussions regarding the mounting of the markers and there has
been some feedback, but nothing final yet. He stated that with regard to the City leadership,
there is a) one contingent that would like to have it on the wall and not on the pavement;
b) one that definitely does not want it on the pavement; and c) one that would rather have
it a freestanding marker. Mr. Cichowski stated that he and Board Member Anderson would
continue to work on the plan for the markers. He stated that they plan to take another trip
to Grapevine to find out exactly what they did for the marker program. Mr. Cichowski
stated that there is a VisionForward — which is a follow-on to Vision2020 adopted by the
City - in which there are six goals for Downtown, noting that Goal No. Six is a plan for
City historical markers. He stated that they were unaware that they were comporting with
one of the goals of VisionForward for the City. Board Member Anderson stated that there
is still work to be done, but they are committed to the concept and that it can be realized.
No action was taken by the Historic Preservation Board on this item.

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Receive a report, hold a discussion, conduct a public hearing, and take action on a request
to demolish property at 619 W. Chestnut Street. (2023-041H)

Board Action

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that the
Applicant has requested to demolish the property at 619 W. Chestnut Street. Ms. Dow
presented photos of the house as it looks at this time. Ms. Dow stated that the guidelines
state that a plan for redevelopment is requested before any demolition is granted. Ms. Dow
stated that Rosin Consultant expressed that they have seen much worse be salvaged. She
stated that it is possible that a new owner might be interested in rehabbing or restoring it if
the property owner is interested in selling it. Ms. Dow stated that the Applicant is here to
speak on the item. Board Member Riley inquired if the consultant had an engineer view
the property and Ms. Dow stated that she does not believe it was looked at by an engineer.

Vice Chair Solomon asked if there was anyone in the audience who wished to speak on
this agenda.

Mr. Robert Tol came forward and provided the following information for the record:



October 3, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes

Page 6 of 8
Name: Mr. Robert Tol
Address: 1129 Singletree Road

Denison, TX

Mr. Tol stated that he manages Denison Glass in town. He stated that he is interested in
tearing down the house at 619 W. Chestnut Street. He stated that this house has been on
this lot for a while now and he has to keep paying taxes on it. Mr. Tol stated that he had a
contractor come out to look at repairing/remodeling the house for a rental unit and he was
informed that it would cost more to fix it up than it would just to tear it down and build a
new structure there. Board Member Cichowski stated that the new guidelines state that
this Board requires the understanding of what an applicant is going to do with a lot prior to
approving a demolition, noting that they cannot do that since it is not the current ordinance.
Mr. Cichowski inquired of Mr. Tol if it was his intent to rebuild in an historic fashion and
Board Member Riley also inquired as to what he would do with the lot if demolition was
approved. Mr. Tol stated that he would build a rental property within the next five or six
years. Board Member Cichowski asked Mr. Tol if he is aware that the building is in the
Historic Overlay District and there are additional rules that go with the type and style of
the building before even obtaining a permit. Mr. Tol stated that he is aware that he would
have to build to look historic, but right now his builder informed him that repairing this
house would cost more than just building a newer, more energy efficient house. Mr. Tol
also stated that if it cannot be demolished because of its historic nature, it will just sit like
itis. In response to Vice Chair Solomon’s inquiry, Mr. Tol stated that he has owned the
house for approximately five or six years and the house was purchased in this condition
and has never been occupied (since he has owned it). Board Member Anderson stated that,
with historic structures, we sometimes see what is called “demolition by neglect,” but she
does not see that this property has advanced to that stage. She stated that she would also
contradict Mr. Tol, in part, knowing that there are properties of historic merit in much
worse condition than this house that have been brought back to attractive, habitable, and
historically appropriate. Ms. Anderson stated that, because of that fact, she is not prepared
to proceed with demolition until there is much more knowledge — one, about the viability
of retaining the property, the cost of repairing it to bring it up to standards, and or some
kind of definitive notion of what might occur in its place, other than a vacant lot.
Board Member Anderson stated that she realizes it is a heavy bit of homework, but she
feels unprepared to proceed with voting to demolish a structure of historic significance
until she is aware of those facts. Mr. Tol stated that he understands. Board Member
Cichowski stated that the term “uninhabitable” does not mean “unrestorable” and also
understands the extra burden of owning a building within the Historic District Overlay and
agrees with Board Member Anderson that he is not prepared to vote for demolition until
he knows what is going to happen with the lot. Mr. Cichowski inquired if the building was
“contributing” or “non-contributing” and Ms. Dow stated that it is her understanding that
it is “just in the Historic Overlay” but not listed as “contributing” or “non-contributing.”
In response to Board Member Riley’s inquiry, Mr. Tol stated that the house is
approximately 1,000 square feet (two-bedroom, one bathroom). Vice Chair Solomon
inquired if she understood Mr. Tol correctly that if the demolition was not approved, he
would just let the house sit — to which Mr. Tol answered in the affirmative. He stated that
maybe five to ten years from now it might be mathematically worth it to rebuild, but not



October 3, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 7 of 8

now. Mr. Tol, when asked by Board Member Cichowski, stated that it would take longer
than two weeks to obtain plans for the building and bring back to the Board. Board Member
Riley inquired if the builder provided an approximate amount to fix up the house and
Mr. Tol responded that he was informed it would be approximately $150,000
(amount given two years ago) but could get with him again to see what the estimate would
be. Board Member Anderson informed Mr. Tol that she did not want to interject into his
business but there are builders in town that are experienced in this type of rebuild and
perhaps he could talk to them about their estimates. Mr. Tol stated that his builder does
the same work all over town. Board Member Cichowski stated that his vote today would
be against demolition, but he could be swayed (in the future) if he had more information
on what would be constructed in its place. Board Member Anderson stated that possibly
he could bring back figures that would show what reconstruction versus new construction
would be. She stated that even though they are not constrained by any power, for this
particular property they still have the responsibility to maintain the integrity of this part of
town. Board Member Riley stated that if the Applicant were to refurbish or rehabilitate the
property, he might not be constrained by the same (awkward) floor plan with the
appropriate permitting and he might be able to increase the square footage. Director of
Development Mary Tate interjected that this property is zoned commercial and cannot be
rebuilt for residential use. She recommended that this matter be tabled or denied until they
can speak with the Applicant about what can actually be constructed on the property.
Discussion ensued between staff, the Applicant, and Board Members regarding the zoning
and permissible construction. Mr. Tol was informed to get with the Planning and
Community Development Department to discuss this issue.

Vice Chair Solomon asked if there was anyone else in the audience who wished to speak
on this agenda item, to which there were none. What that, the Public Hearing was closed.

On motion by Board Member Cichowski, seconded by Board Member Anderson, the
Historic Preservation Board denied the request to demolish the structure at
619 W. Chestnut Street.

5. STAFF UPDATES

A. Staff update regarding 313 W. Main Street.

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that she
approved in office a sign request for Premier Imaging at 313 W. Main Street.

B. Staff update regarding Masonic Lodge.

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that she
approved in office a sign request for Masonic Lodge.

Board Member Cichowski complimented staff on their work on the Design Guidelines and
the Historic Preservation Ordinance. City Clerk Wallentine stated that they are hopeful to
have these items on the October 16, 2023, City Council Meeting agenda. Ms. Dow stated
that she added this as an “action” item on the agenda as she believes the City Council will
want the ability to discuss it and ask questions.



October 3, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 8 of 8

In response to Board Member Cichowski’s inquiry, Ms. Dow stated that she will have the
item for the new Board Member on the October 16, 2023, City Council Meeting agenda.

6. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 12:56 p.m.

KIRSTEN SOLOMON, Board Vice Chair

ATTEST:

Karen L. Avery, Deputy City Clerk



Dercison

CITY OF DENISON
HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD MEETING
MINUTES

Tuesday, October 17, 2023

1. CALL TO ORDER

Announce the presence of a quorum.

Vice Chair Solomon called the meeting to order at 12:01 PM. Board Members present were
Linda Anderson, Kurt Cichowski, and Steve Riley.

Staff present were Donna Dow, Main Street Director; Grant Yoder, Main Street Coordinator;
Mary Tate, Director of Development; Kirk J. Kern, Senior Building Inspector; Robert Lay,
Neighborhood Services Manager; Harlan Owens, Fire Marshal; and Karen Avery,
Deputy City Clerk.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No Request to Speak Cards were received at this point in the meeting. Therefore, no public
comments were received.

3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION

Prior to Individual Consideration items being heard, and, for the record, Director of Main Street
Donna Dow informed the Board that the item that was heard on October 3, 2023, and tabled to
today’s meeting [Item 3.B — Proposed Storefront and Windows at 501 W. Main Street] was not
added to the agenda today as the Applicant was unprepared to go forward with his presentation
at this time. Ms. Dow stated that when they are ready to present (the Board’s requested items),
she will place it back on the agenda.

A. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on the request to paint a mural on the
north facing side of 311 W Main Street.

Board Action

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that the
tenant at 311 W. Main Street (2 Chicks Home and Market) has proposed to paint a mural
on the alley-side of their building. The mural will be painted by Steven Ray Bohall, the
same artist who painted the Ashburn’s mural, the Eisenhower mural on Chestnut, and
others. The mural will feature a train commemorating Denison’s history and flowers.
Ms. Dow stated that Ms. Elise Russell is present to speak on the item. Ms. Russell then
came forward and provided the following information for the record:

Page 1 of 8



October 17, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 2 of 8

Name: Ms. Elsie Russell
2 Chicks Home and Market

Address: 311 W. Main Street
Denison, TX

Ms. Russell stated that she brought more photos for the Board, in addition to what was
presented in the agenda packet. She stated that her back entrance (on Woodard Street) will
likely become her front entrance during the upcoming construction. The mural that they
are proposing is called “Denison in Bloom.” Ms. Russell stated that they have spoken to
many of the other building owners and where it is historically appropriate, they hope to
filter the mural down the alley to be a cohesive connection to each building. She stated
that she has also spoken with another building owner that would like to have a sculpture of
the flowers and attach it to the building, noting that this is just some of the vision for the
future. Board Member Anderson commended Ms. Russell for taking leadership on the back
facades for when they move into that phase of construction. Ms. Russell stated that the
artist requested the Applicant to remove the bars above the windows and they checked it
out and determined that some of the wood is rotted from water damage. She stated that she
met with a contractor who, even though he has many customers ahead of her, would work
to get the windows repaired exactly as they were — but without the bars. Ms. Russell stated
that she has learned that the bars are not historic and she would love for it not to look like
ajail cell. She stated that you cannot get to those windows from the interior of the building.
She noted that years ago Mr. Ringler did a remodel on the inside of the building on the
mezzanine level of it and noted that when you open the doors, the floor is right there. The
room above that was storage. Ms. Russell stated that there is a solid wall blocking the
interior of the windows and there was some discussion in design about those windows, but
she cannot bring them back to what they look like previously (from the inside). Ms. Russell
stated that they have been painted over for years and the mural will only cover a couple of
the windows in the middle, noting that the panes are approximately 12” x 12” (and does
not cover too much of the back). Board Member Riley asked Ms. Russell to clarify if the
windows would be built back as they are now. Ms. Russell stated that they are going to
repair the windows — not remove them. The contractor will repair the trim across the top
and the board behind the windows, noting that the only part being removed is the bars.
Vice Chair Solomon inquired about the window that is boarded up and Ms. Russell
responded that they had water damage from a recent storm (and prior storms) that have to
be repaired and that is the work they are waiting on. Vice Chair Solomon stated that once
the bars are removed, the Applicant could possibly utilize that space for signage.
Ms. Russell stated that she plans on including signage in her alley activation grant that she
will be completing for the second part of her application for D3. Ms. Russell discussed
some ideas for her future vision regarding the doors, bathroom, etc. Board Member
Cichowski inquired if Ms. Russell had her building permit and Ms. Russell stated that she
did not. Mr. Cichowski requested that she get with staff as soon as possible to take care of
that. Board Member Anderson commended Ms. Russell and the owners on the project and
the fact that they are fully funded. Board Member Riley inquired about the design and



October 17, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 3 of 8

Ms. Russell informed him that Steven Bohall is a friend of hers from Denison, although he
now lives in Kansas. She stated that he has drawn other murals in town and she and Council
Member Brian Hander collaborated with him to work on this particular mural. Board
Member Anderson stated that she appreciates how “life-affirming” the flowers are as
smoke.

On motion by Board Member Cichowksi, seconded by Board Member Riley, the
Historic Preservation Board approved the addition of a mural on the alley-side of
311 W. Main Street.

B. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on the request to paint a mural on the
east facing side of 700 W Main Street.

Board Action

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that the
tenant at 700 W. Main Street (Marr Family) has proposed to paint a mural on the Barrett
side of the building. The mural would be painted by Matt Bardwell, a local artist who
painted the Booth’s Brew mural along Armstrong Avenue. The mural would feature a train
commemorating Denison’s history and Red River at the Carpenter’s Bluff Bridge.
Ms. Dow stated that the Design Committee has reviewed and approved this item. Ms. Dow
stated that both the property owner and artist are present to speak on the item. Mr. Matt
Bardwell then came forward and provided the following information for the record:

Name: Mr. Matt Bardwell
SM Home Interiors

Address: 626 W. Main Street
Denison, TX

Mr. Bardwell stated that he has a small art space at the back of 626 W. Main Street called
“The Odd Frog.” He stated that the owners (the Marr Family) are supportive of the mural.
He stated that he would like to keep the train rustic red, like the original trains. In response
to Board Member Cichowski’s inquiry, Mr. Bardwell stated that he is attempting to match
the MKT colors. Board Member Anderson stated that she really likes the way the mural
looks as presented and especially likes the drawing and impressionistic nature of it, as
opposed to the hard lines that other murals have. She stated that she would love to have
the final project look like the rendering that was submitted (a “sketch”). Mr. Bardwell
stated that the rendering provided (the “sketch”) was approved by the Design Committee
and that is the way he intends to draw it. In response to Board Member Riley’s inquiries,
Mr. Bardwell stated that he will be using acrylic paints and an outdoor sealant for the mural
and he anticipates it taking approximately two weeks. Board Member Cichowski stated
that he would like to see a commitment from the owners that if there was any damage or
repairs needed within five years, they would work with the artist to repair it. Mr. Bardwell
stated that he usually gives that guarantee because you never know if it could be “tagged”



October 17, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 4 of 8

or otherwise messed up. In response to Board Member Cichowski’s inquiry, Mr. Bardwell
stated that the project is fully funded.

On motion by Board Member Riley, seconded by Board Member Anderson, the
Historic Preservation Board approved the addition of a mural on the east side of
700 W. Main Street.

C. Receive a report, hold a discussion and take action on adding a black railing on
second- story rear exterior at 325 W. Main Street.

Board Action

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that the
pergola was previously approved and presented a rendering of the updated version of the
pergola. In response to Board Member Cichowski’s inquiry, Ms. Dow stated that work has
not commenced yet. Director of Development Mary Tate stated that staff is agreeable to
the materials being used and the Applicant needs to make sure that they are compliant with
building codes, etc. In response to Board Member Cichowski’s inquiry, Ms. Dow stated
that it is the Applicant’s intention to keep the wall (separating the buildings) when
renovating; otherwise, the Applicant would have to come before the Board to have
demolition approved. Board Member Riley stated that he recalled the problem that the
Board had with the item previously, noting that the Applicant was non-compliant with
several issues, but it appears that they are doing everything by the book now. Director Tate
stated that staff initially felt there was an issue with the safety of the rail so the Applicant
came back with materials that are sturdier. Board Member Anderson stated that the paint
color appeared to be a different color than what it was before and Ms. Dow stated that she
can approve the painting at the staff level.

On motion by Board Member Cichowski, seconded by Board Member Anderson, the
Historic Preservation Board approved the addition of a black fence around the exposed
perimeter of the second story rear exterior of 325 W. Main Street.

D. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and consider approval of Historic Preservation
Ordinance update and recommendation of approval to City Council.

Board Action

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, introduced this agenda item and stated that she would
like to start with questions from the Board. Mr. Cichowski stated that the Ordinance will
need a final editing for formatting, subscript, font size/type, etc. Ms. Dow stated that a
final review and edit would be completed prior to being sent to the City Council for
approval. Ms. Dow stated that she has made some edits that still need to be reviewed by
the City Attorney and that would be done after this meeting. She informed the Board that
she would like to review several of the edits that she made after previous discussions with
Board Members. Edits and revisions were discussed as follows:



October 17, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes

Page 5 of 8

Board Member Cichowski pointed out that Page 8 of the Ordinance, Section 30-10
references “Enforcement.” With regard to the sentence that states, “It shall be the
duty of the Development Services Department, in coordination with the HPO
and/or HPB, to inspect any such work to ensure compliance.”, Mr. Cichowski
stated that the same section further states, “...the code compliance officer
neighborhood services department, or the HPO shall issue a stop work order,
...” He considers this a partial success as not all of the work will completely be on
the HPO to enforce compliance. Director Tate stated that until a matter gets to the
legal process, the burden is on staff for enforcement. Board Member Anderson
inquired about the Fire Marshal being involved in the enforcement of “stop work
orders” and suggested that it be discussed with the City Attorney. There was
discussion among Board Members and staff regarding the Ordinance stating “HPO”
and not a specific staff member’s name and confirming that it is this way throughout
all documents and ordinances — including the other departments.

With regard to Page 10 of the Ordinance, Sections 10-13 Fees and 10-14
Penalties, discussion ensued regarding the maximum amount for a fine/penalty that
could be assessed for failure to comply with provisions of the Ordinance. The
Ordinance states that, “...a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00),
unless related to health and public safety each day that such violation
continues...”. Board Member Cichowski requested that staff ensure that this
section coordinates with other sections of the Ordinance. There was discussion
regarding the cap/ceiling for the fine and if there is anything that prohibits the Board
from assessing a fine/penalty higher than $500. Board Member Riley stated that
state law determines the maximum amount that can be fined. Neighborhood
Services Manager Robert Lay stated that if the penalty is related to health and public
safety, the penalty can be greater than $500 but a judge will determine the amount
of the fine. Discussion ensued regarding the actual enforcement of the “stop work
order” and assessment of penalties.

Director Dow stated that Kelly Little of the Texas Historical Commission (THC) reviewed
the Ordinance on behalf of the Certified Local Government’s perspective. She stated that
there were legal items that THC was aware of that needed correcting (and have been
corrected). Ms. Dow stated that the City Attorney’s office has also reviewed the document.
Ms. Dow further stated that:

With regard to Section 30.3 Designation of landmarks or historic districts she
added “...buildings, sites,...” to the designation of landmarks; however, she is
unaware of who can actually make the designation of the landmarks or historic
districts. She is going to review this with the City Attorney and will make any
corrections to this section that are necessary.



October 17, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 6 of 8

On motion by Board Member Cichowski, seconded by Board Member Riley, the
Historic Preservation Board provided a statement of support for the current version of the
Historic Preservation Ordinance and anticipates approval of the Ordinance pending final
City Attorney and City staff review.

E. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and consider adopting October 2023 update to the
City of Denison Historic District Design Guidelines and recommending to City Council
for adoption.

Board Action

Donna Dow, Main Street Director, introduced this agenda item and requested comments
and feedback from the Board regarding the Design Guidelines presented in the packet.
Discussion ensued regarding the following items in the Guidelines:

e Board Member Anderson stated that the Board has “danced around what a ‘clear’
window looks like” and the Board will most likely continue to do so until a decision
is made with regard to defining the word “clear” in reference to window film (refer
Guideline 3.07.6-Replacement Windows and Window Film — Subsection (c.)).
She further stated that there have been many transgressions up and down the street
and will most likely continue if the Board does not put a well-defined definition on
the term. Director Dow stated that she has spoken with a [window film] vendor who
would be agreeable to providing some education or guidance to the Board with
regard to window tinting. She stated that the manner in which it is stated in the
Guidelines is guidance provided by the National Parks Service and that is as clear
and final of an answer as she believes she is going to obtain. Ms. Dow understands
that it does not provide a definitive path in which to proceed but she has not found
any further guidance. Board Member Riley stated that he understands that there
are property owners that must utilize window tinting in order to protect their
merchandise. Mr. Riley stated that the Board has approved some tinting at a certain
percentage primarily to emit less light, not necessarily a color. He would like to
have the wording defined as “low E.” Director Tate clarified that these are
guidelines only and it does not necessarily mean that someone has to follow them.
Discussion ensued among the Board and staff regarding individuals not following
the guidelines and the end product not being to the Board’s liking. It was noted that
the window film is repeated several times in the guidelines (exact same wording —
different sections). Board Member Cichowski stated that because these are
“guidelines” and not in the Ordinance, the Board may find itself in situations where
they have to decide cases on a one-by-one basis. Board Member Riley stated that
someone might have a unique problem that the Board never thought of and it may
not follow the guidelines but the Board feels it appropriate to their situation.
Board Member Anderson recalled the first time an individual requested solar panels
and the Board was able to approve it because it was clearly in the guidelines and
appropriate. It was the consensus of the Board to revisit the issue of window tinting.



October 17, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 7 of 8

e Board Member Cichowski stated that he wanted to note that with regard to Page 23
of the Guidelines, Guideline 4.04-3-Maintaining or re-establishing the historic
color scheme is appropriate, there is no recommended color palette. Ms. Dow
stated that there is a recommended color palette on the website. Discussion ensued
regarding Guideline 4.04-3(c). regarding colors and hues. Ms. Dow stated that this
is probably how the national wording is but if she were asked to explain it, she
would not be able to. After much discussion regarding this section — and some
thinking that the wording is “terms of art”, it was determined that this wording
needed to be re-worded and/or cleaned up.

Vice Chair Solomon, referencing the previous discussion regarding window tinting,
inquired about the building at 431 (?) W. Main Street that has psychedelic blues and greens
on the window. She inquired if this was considered window tinting and if they came before
the Board for approval — or if they even needed approval. Ms. Dow stated that they did
not ask for permission but, in her opinion, it should have come before the Board. Board
Member Cichowski stated that he believes it is important to make approvals a requirement
across the entire chapters and not just Chapter 30 — and tie the Certificate of
Appropriateness all the way through the permitting department and Code Compliance,
noting that no Certificate of Occupancy would be issued without compliance of all of the
requirements.

Ms. Dow stated that the Guidelines were reviewed by the City Attorney’s office and they
had no comments and did not recommend any changes. She stated that it has also been
reviewed by all of the City departments. Director Tate stated that Fire Marshal Harlan
Owens is in the process of reviewing the sections that need his stamp of approval and will
inform Director Dow when complete.

On motion by Board Member Cichowski, seconded by Board Member Riley, the
Historic Preservation Board provided a statement of support for the current version of the
Historic District Design Guidelines and anticipates approval of the Guidelines, pending
appropriate staff review.

The Board commended Ms. Dow and all of the staff for their hard work on the Ordinance
and Guidelines and expressed their appreciation for a job well done.

4. STAFF UPDATES
A. Staff Update regarding 125 W. Woodard Street

Director Dow presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that the (previously approved)
sign at Zig Zag Galleries at 125 W. Woodard Street was damaged by the last storm, so she
approved the sign for repair at the staff level.



October 17, 2023
Historic Preservation Board Meeting Minutes
Page 8 of 8

B. Staff Update regarding 531 W. Crawford Street

Director Dow presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that Mells Grill changed the
location of their sign that was previously approved and she approved that change at the
staff level.

C. Staff Update regarding 115 S. Fannin Avenue

Director Dow presented this agenda item. Ms. Dow stated that the new (longer) sign at
the Masonic Lodge was approved by her at the staff level.

5. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 1:14 p.m.

KIRSTEN SOLOMON, Board Vice Chair

ATTEST:

Karen L. Avery, Deputy City Clerk



Historic Preservation Meeting .:
Staff Report .
e S0~

Agenda Item
Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on proposed storefront and adding paint.
(2022-065H/2023-046H)

Staff Contact

Donna Dow, Historic Preservation Officer
ddow@cityofdenison.com

903-464-4452

Summary
The applicant previously received approval for a new storefront.
The applicant would like to modify request to be able to leave as it has been installed.
The applicant would also like to determine if painting is an option.

Background Information and Analysis

The property at 501 W. Main was approved on October 27, 2022. The storefront built does not appear to
be the same in the approved drawings. The applicant is requesting permission for the storefront as built.
The applicant would also like to paint the building the same color as 34 Chophouse.

The design as built does not look like the drawing presented. Our requirements include a bulkhead under
the display window. Although shown on the applicant’s proposed plans, this was not installed. Clear
glass is also mentioned in the consultant’s report although not mentioned in the motion for approval.

The consultant’s original report states:

e Storefront windows: The proposed design with window, transom, and bulkhead design looks good.
Glass should be clear, low-e.

e Storefront doors: | would recommend that the applicant use doors without divided/simulated divided
lights. Doors with % view and a lower panel, like the door in the illustration on page 8 of the Denison
Design Guidelines, would be more appropriate.

e Awning: Is there historic evidence for the awning as proposed?

Staff Recommendation

Staff does not recommend approval as the proposed storefront does not meet our guidelines. A
modification of the windows to include bulkheads is recommended. Painting is not appropriate for
unpainted brick.

Prior Board or Council Action



The item was presented and approved on October 27, 2022. The construction does not match the
approved plans and was brought back on October 3, 2023. The board request the owner to consider
adding bulkheads to the storefront.

Alternatives
The Historic Preservation Board may table, recommend denial, or recommend approval with
conditions.

Recommended Motion
I move to deny or approve with conditions the storefront and painting of 501 W. Main Street

.Notes:

After the October 3, 2023 meeting, the owner requested the following:

As a follow up, attached is a drawing of the front of the 501 building that shows the wood panels trim at
the base of the store front that we will add if required. The panels will be 18" tall and will be painted the
same black color as the two black bands on the front of the building.

Don Day

Rosin Consultant Recommendation:

Darkened, full height windows are not historically appropriate. His originally proposed design with the
bulkhead is historically appropriate. If he does not want to do wood, he could modify the existing
storefront to have an aluminum bulkhead.

As for painting the building, he might have a point about the brick being damaged by the removal of the
hard outer layer. The mortar should be investigated and appropriately repointed as needed before any
paint or other sealer added. Any application of a paint should follow the guidelines specified in
Preservation Brief #1 https://www.nps.gov/orgs/1739/upload/preservation-brief-01-cleaning-
masonry.pdf (towards the end of the brief, there’s discussion about coatings). You all will also need to
assess the type of paint being used. Aesthetically, | don’t think the building looks bad unpainted, and the
photo he provided is from the 1960s, after the period of significance. Proceed with caution on the brick
painting.



https://www.nps.gov/orgs/1739/upload/preservation-brief-01-cleaning-masonry.pdf
https://www.nps.gov/orgs/1739/upload/preservation-brief-01-cleaning-masonry.pdf

Excerpt from Minutes from the October 27, 2022 Meeting:

G. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and take action on removing current storefront and reverting
original and historic storefront design, addition of awning, and replacing of windows at 501 W. Main
Street. (2022-065H).

Board Action

Mr. Day stated they have recently purchased and renovated this building. The first floor will be retail
and the second floor will have apartments. Mr. Day stated the building has structural problems—the east
wall is bulging out, so they have built buttresses to bolt the wall. Mr. Day stated they would like to open
up all of the windows. He stated that the architect drew a plan for the windows, but his preference is to
have the windows on the second floor be sash windows with one glass over one glass (1/1), as opposed
to the multiple glasses. The storefront door will have one single glass. Mr. Day stated that on the first
floor there are some small windows up very high (that you must have a ladder to get to) and those
windows will be solid and not operable. Mr. Day stated they are proposing to leave the brick the color it
is now. Currently, his plan is to leave the painting on the front of the building the color it is now
knowing that when they lease that building to a resale tenant, they will have to have signage. Mr. Day
stated colors can be addressed at that point.

On motion by Board Member Knott, seconded by Board Member Solomon, the Historic Preservation
Board unanimously approved the removal and rebuilding of the storefront and addition of windows as
detailed for 501 W. Main.



City of Denison

Application for Certificate of Appropriateness %”};’ASJM
300 W. Main Street, PO Box 347

Denison, TX 75020 Revision Date: 05/2021
planning@cityofdenison.com Page 1 of 3

903-465-2720

Address of Property: 501 W MAIN ST
Property Owner(s): DFA, LTD
Applicant Name: DON DAY
Relationship to Owner: OWNER

m Check if same as Property Owner
Applicant Mailing Address: 110 E LOUISIANA ST, STE 200 MCKINNEY, TX 75069

Applicant E-Mail Address; PON@MCKINNEYGRAND.COM Ay plicant Cell Phone Number: 214-405-2493

Please submit this completed application with the following supplemental items attached:

]
]
C]
]

Letter of intent stating all work being done, purpose of work, and all colors, materials to be
used

Current photograph of property

Historical photograph of property (if available)

A detailed list of all building materials and colors to be used (swatches and samples may be
requested) Three (3) color options and their proposed application shall be provided with each
painting request.

Site Plan or photograph of site with proposed changes

Drawing of proposed changes, including dimensions of each element being
added/removed

1 Required if signage is involved: scale drawing of signage, including dimensions, colors,
locations, illumination, materials, and hardware listed noted

0O

This application may not be considered complete without supplemental items.
Bold items required for all projects.
Attachments should be 11” X 17” or smaller.
Certificate of Appropriateness becomes null and void if authorized work has not begun one year
after issuance.

Building Primary Material Type: Name of Contractor:
O Wood DFA, LTD
m Brick
O Stucco Has the building been previously painted?
O Other: = Yes
J No

Property's Current Primary Use: Will changes being made change the primary
= Commercial use?

O Residential & No
1 Other:

O Yes. If yes, state new use:

City of Denison
300 W. Main Street | Denison, Texas 75021 | 903-465-2720 | www.cityofdenison.com


mailto:planning@cityofdenison.com

Revision Date: 05/2021
Page 2 of 3

Please check all that apply regarding the work to be done at the property:

Masonry

Type

Repointing

Cleaning

Removing paint
Repairing/replacing/removing
Coatings, including water
repellent coatings

ONONNQO

Wood

1 Removing Paint

m Repairing/replacing/removing
wood

[ Coating, including chemical
preservatives

Painting: Please provide
samples and list all colors.

] Brick:

1 Other masonry:

= Wood:

[] Other fagcade elements:

Windows

= Repairing/replacing sashes

[J Changing number size,
location, or glazing pattern

[J Cutting new windows

[ Closing or blocking

Entrances: including doors,
fanlights, sidelights, pilasters,
entablatures, columns,
balustrades, stairs, etc.

Entrance repair/replacement
O Entrance removal

Roof: including dormers,
chimneys, slates, tiles, shingles,
metal, etc.

] Repairing roof

1 Replacing roof

[] Repairing/replacing features

= Addition to primary facade
[] Other addition:

Awning

= Replacing ] Porch removal [J Removing features
[J Porch closure/enclosure
Additions Demolition Other

] Residential
= Commercial
(] Other:

[ Please explain:

Signage to be installed:

Location Lighting Hardware
] Window/door [ Exterior illumination 1 Screw mounting
(1 Building [ Building illumination 1 Wires
] Pole [J Non-white lighting [J Tension system
® Other: 1BD O Type: [ Freestanding:
Other: TBD ml Other: TBD
Colors Materials Other signage elements
= Please list: [J Masonry Type: [] Please explain:
L1 Vinyl
1 Metal
[ Canvas
L1 Other:

City of Denison

300 W. Main Street | Denison, Texas 75021 | 903-465-2720 | www.cityofdenison.com



Revision Date: 05/2021
Page 3 of 3

| hereby certify that | have examined this application and know the information presented herein to be
true and correct. All provisions of laws and ordinance governing this type of work will be complied with
whether specified or not. If a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) is issued, it is my responsibility to
verify if a Building Permit is necessary before beginning work, and to verify if inspections must be done
upon completion of work. The granting of a COA does not give authority to violate or be exempt from the
provisions of any other local, state, or federal law regulating construction or performance of construction.

Work done without an applicable COA may result in a fine, and removal of unauthorized construction

| 10/12/2022

Property Owner's Signature Date
DFA, LTD - DON DAY

Property Owner's Printed Name

OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Staff Received: Case Number: Receipt #:

Select one: Contributing/Non-contributing | Date Received: Built Circa:




DFA LTD
110 E. LOUISIANA STREET
MCKINNEY TEXAS 75069
October 20, 2023

Donna Dow

Main Street Director
CITY OF DENISON TX

Dear Donna:
Attached are renderings of the building located at 501 W. Main.

Also attached are pictures of several other buildings that | have included to support my comments
below.

First, however, | think it is important to say that whenever DFA builds or renovates a building, we strive
to make it as beautiful as possible because beauty is powerful and attracts people. And because
beautiful buildings attract more people, the buildings are easier to lease, and the merchants do much
better and the community thrives.

For this same reason, beauty attracts, we often add works of art in front of our buildings such as the
recently added Selfie Girl sculpture in front of 226 W. Main. This work of art has attracted numerous
new visitors downtown and the response has been overwhelmingly positive.

If Denison is to revitalize its downtown, Denison must do all it can to make Denison downtown more
beautiful. And if Denison also adds entertainment, especially restaurants that entertain with food, drink
and music, the downtown will soon be busy and thriving in a way that Denison has not seen in decades.

Those are the principles DFA uses for all buildings that DFA LTD develops or renovates in historic

downtowns and the guiding principles for the redevelopment of 501 W. Main Street, which is the subject
of this letter.

501 MAIN FAGADE PAINTING.
Attached is a picture of the 501 building as it was in 1968 when it was painted white.
Attached is a picture of how it is now with metal plates and various colors.

And attached is a rendering of the building showing how it can be provided the Historic Preservation
approves painting the building.

Currently the 501 building, especially on the east side, is not attractive. It is dingy, discolored, dated with
exposed steel structural plates. To remove the white paint, in years past, someone cleaned it with sand
blasting and sand blasting did structural damage and caused the exterior wall to bow outward several
inches. To repair the damage, we had to build concrete and steel pilasters on the inside and bolt the
original brick wall to the pilasters with steel plates. The combination of exposed steel plates and the
faded, discolored look is not attractive, and the building needs a facelift and paint will go a long way in
moving this building from ugly to beautiful.



Paint will also seal the exterior mortar joints and stop the weathering and leaching of the mortar joints
over the coming years.

It is also important to note that of 60% of all the buildings in the 100 block through the 600 block of
downtown Denison (51 buildings out of 85 buildings) are painted and that painted facades are historic
in Denison Tx.

Attached are before and after pictures of the buildings at 331 W. Main which my company painted
approximately one year ago. The “before” pictures are dingy and dated. The painted versions are much
improved. The same will apply to the 501 building. Painting it will significantly improve the appearance
of the building and add to the beauty of the downtown.

It is also worth noting that the cost to paint this building will be approximately $10,000.00 and cost is an
incentive to NOT paint the building. However, painting this building will significantly improve the
appearance and because the paint will seal the antique mortar from the elements, the building will, long
term, be more likely to remain structurally sound as well as being more attractive and easier to lease and
keep leased.

This building needs to be painted and | request approval to paint it.

The red color to be used to paint the brick is the exact same color as was approved for the building we
painted at 331 W. Main Street. “Remember me Red”, # 1815U

The black color will be “N black” from the approved color chart and is the black trim on the awning at
331 W. Main.

And the gray for the front facade will be “Ashen Gray” # 7536U

Finally, as it pertains to painting, there is a wall on the front of the building on the west side that is under
the overhang and between the storefront and the sidewalk that needs to be painted. A picture is
attached and shows this wall to be discolored with new plaster patches. | would like to paint this
exterior plaster wall the same “Ashen Gray” # 7536U.

501 MAIN WOOD PANELS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE STOREFRONT.

The Historic Preservation committee has asked that | attach wood panels at the bottom of the 501 Main
storefronts to make it look like a drawing in the committee’s guidelines.

This can be done but, in my opinion, it will create more problems than it solves.

And full height storefronts currently exist on 19% of the building in block 100 through block 600 of the
Denison Main Street and therefore full height storefronts, as is currently on the front of 501 Main, is not
unusual or different from what already exists in downtown Denison.

Attached to support this statement are pictures of five of the sixteen buildings with storefronts that are
the same as the current existing storefront on the 501 Main building.



| would prefer not to add the wood trim to the base of the existing storefront at 501 Main for several
reasons as follows:

The addition of the wood trim on the bottom of the storefront will create a long-term
maintenance problem because wood rots and every few years it will need to be replaced.

In addition, the wood must be glued to the glass and the glue will deteriorate over time and will
require periodic replacement creating another maintenance issue.

In addition to glue the wood to the glass, it will also be necessary to attach the wood panels to
the storefront metal and will require that holes be drilled into the metal storefront columns,
near the bottom and this will expose the columns to future water infiltration and water damage.
Wood is a fire hazard and | have had the experience of a wood base to a storefront in McKinney
TX catching fire when a cigarette was carelessly tossed into a bed of dried leaves that had blown
against the same kind of wood trim and set the front of the building on fire. The existing metal
and class storefront will not be susceptible to this hazard and is safer than it will be if wood
panels are attached.

Because the store front metal columns are dark bronze, the wood trim will need painted a dark
color to match the bronze color on the storefront and once painted, it will fade into background
and not be noticed. Much like the black ceramic tile at the base of the storefront on Landon
Winery at 316 Main is not often noticed.

The addition of the wood trim to the base of the storefront will be seldom noticed, will create
maintenance problems and is a fire hazard and | believe that the problems caused by adding this wood
trim far outweigh any possible gain.

For these reasons, | request that we not be required to add wood trim to the base of the storefront.

SUMMARY. For decades downtown Denison has been bypassed with little activity. Many buildings were
locked up, boarded up and activity was sparse. Two years ago, we began an effort to change this and
revitalize the downtown Deison using the same practices that worked in other cities and most recently in
McKinney Texas. The methods we use to accomplish this includes:

To update the historic building with new storefronts, new paint, new windows and reopening
the boarded up second floors windows. We have completed this revitalization of the buildings at
316 Main, 331 Main and will soon finish the buildings at 231 Main and 501 Main. We recently
purchased 323 Main and are starting the same renovation process of that burned out building.
To infill vacant lots with new buildings that are designed to fit into the antique architecture that
currently exists in downtown Denison. An example of this work is the recently finished building
at 226 Main and we anticipate adding two additional new buildings on the vacant lots at 317
Main and 221 Main.
To bring new businesses that attract customers to downtown. To date we have successfully
attracted the following new businesses to downtown Denison:

o 34 CHOPHOUSE AT 331 MAIN
LANDON WINERY AT 316 MAIN
CHEZ NOUNOU BOTIQUE AT 214 MAIN
BABY IMAGING AT 313 MAIN
DEVILED EGG CO. AT 231 MAIN.

O 0O 0O O



o AND WE HAVE ALSO ADDED 4 NEW OFFICE TENANTS AND 3 LOFT APARTMENTS.
o OVER THE COMING YEAR WE WILL ADD 5 ADDITIONAL RETAIL BUSINESS, 8 ADDITIONAL
LOFT APARTMENTS AND UP TO 20 MORE OFFICE TENANTS.

To continue this revitalization process we must build beautiful buildings and bring entertainment to
downtown Denison.

If the Historic Commission allows us to follow our plan as outlined above, we can have a long-term
positive impact on the revitalization of downtown Denison over the coming years.

For these reasons, | ask for approval of the following two items:

e Paint the exterior of the 501 Main building and
e To approve the storefront as is without the additional wood trim.

Sincerely

Don Day
DFA LTD



Bl
Bttty

\J ‘-“n\u‘
- rq\




501 today

Rhonda Borgne <rhondaborgne@yahoo.com>

Wed 10/11/2023 12:02 PM

To:Don Day <don@mckinneygrand.com>;

























Untitled

Don Day

Fri 10/13/2023 4:48 PM

'o:.Don Day <don@mckinneygrand.com>;

Sent from my iPhone



Donna

As we discussed this morning, the windows that we have installed on the second floor of the
building at 501 W. Main are the windows in that size that are available for purchase

today. With supply chain issues everywhere, options are limited and we have installed what we
could find available. We ask that you approve the installed windows.

We also ask that you approve the storefront as it has been installed. Since the front door was
in the center of the store front previously, the storefront contractor matched what was there
before. We ask for your approval for the storefront as installed.

Also, on the side of the building there were small windows into the upper levels of the first
floor and we plan on re-opening those historic windows. Because those first floor windows
where originally designed to allow for natural light into the first floor, they are small non-
standard sizes and we cannot buy manufactured windows that fit those openings. Our plan is
to frame these small windows in wood and install solid pane glass into the framed

openings. The wood will be painted to match the other windows.

Also, | am considering painting the building exterior to cover up the structural steel plates on
side of the building. | have seen historic pictures of the building where, in the past it was
painted. At some point, the paint was removed, likely by sand blasting, which likely contributed
to the recurring brick failures and one reason the structural repairs were required. If the
building where to be painted, the color selection would be identical to the paint colors on 331
W. Main with the brick painted red and the trim white. | raise the paint question to get the
Historic Commissions thoughts on this question. | am okay will leaving it as is but think it would
look better and fresher if we paint it and would like to know how the HC might consider this
exterior painting of the brick.

We ask for your approval of the windows and storefront as installed and as described above
and would like your thoughts on the exterior painting.

Sincerely

Don Day
DFALTD



501 W MAIN
DETAILED DESCRIPTION - DRAWINGS ATTACHED

Building dimensions: 25' WIDE AND 120' DEEP

A detailed list of all building materials and colors to be used (swatches and samples may be
requested) Three (3) color options and their proposed application shall be provided with each painting
request:

COLORS WILL NOT CHANGE. LEAVING THE BRICK UNPAINTED AND THE FRONT TO REMAIN
THE SAME COLOR THAT IT CURRENTLY IS.

NO CHANGE IN BUILDING MATERIALS, REMAIN AS BRICK. HOWEVER THE EAST WALL

IS STRUCTURALLY FAILING AND MUST BE REINFORCED WITH CONCRETE BUTTRESSES ON
THE INSIDE OF THE WALL WITH BOLTS THROUGH TO THE OUTSIDE. THERE WILL BE STAR
SHAPED PLATES ON THE OUTSIDE OF THE BUILDING AT THE END OF EACH BOLT. THE STAR
SHAPED PLATES ARE EXISTING ON NUMEROUS BUILDING IN THE DOWNTOWN AREA.

Windows: REPLACE ALL WINDOWS WITH WINDOWS AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED ELEVATION. ALL
WINDOWS TO BE CAULKED AND SEALED
Masonry: REPOINT AS NEEDED

Wood: CAULK AND PAINT AS NEEDED.
Paint: TO REMAIN AS IS.
Roof: REPAIR AS NEEDED

Demo: REMOVE EXISTING STORE FRONT AND REPLACE AS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS.

Wood: ALL WOOD TO REMAIN EXCEPT WHERE INDICATED ON DRAWINGS

Entrances: ALL FRAMES AND DOORS TO BE BRONZE METAL.

Additions: AWNING AS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS. THE AWNING WILL BE A METAL AWNING, 4'
WIDE AND BRONZE COLOR.

Signage: TBD UPON DETERMINED TENANT OCCUPANCY









-l.-l
=iy
s

o+
'y
<l

l-.ldll.'...;:l"

T

ni ]
¥ .I".-l-'r
oo

e
7 1
S
]

'
¥ g ®
B

S

i 1"‘. .-.I:"'- I,:l:.‘ -'._hﬁ'

_ar



P. 8 from Design Guidelines

DECORATIVE

CORNICE

CORNICE ——%=a —

MASONRY

WALL S|

UPPER
FACADE

WINDOW

—
=5
=

HOOhS

REGULARLY
SPACED
WIMNDBOWS

STOREFRONT
CORMICE

TRANSOM
MASOMNRY PTER
STOREFRONT

DISPLAY

e —

1t

il

WINDOW

BULKHEAD:

TRADITIONAL
FACADE
COMPONENTS



9/21/2022 7:49:52 PM

4

REMOVAL OF EXISTING
OPENING INFILL, REPLACE
W/ SAME SIZE WINDOW, TYP. ————=

[ a—————— | ——— | ———

DEMOLITION UPPER FLOOR PLAN

3/16" = 1'-0"

" WALL TO UNDERSIDE OF SOFFIT

.~ 'REMOVAL OF EXST. SToREFRONT ‘

ABOVE AT EXTERIOR

e

 REMOVALOF . *
- )EXST SOFFIT. -

DEMOLITION GROUND FLOOR PLAN

3

2

3/16" = 1'-0"

T

-ﬂ

EXISTING UPPER FLOOR PLAN

[— | | | e | s

3/16" = 1'-0"

1

p
\] [‘/

'y"
I_p /

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

3/16" = 1'-0"

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

INTERIM
REVIEW DOCUMENTS
NOT FOR REGULATORY
APPROVAL, PERMITTING
OR CONSTRUCTION
Daniel B. Shearer
Tx. Reg. No. 26562

HH West Man Streek
Denison, Texas
PHYOT SH66

SHEARER ARCHTIECTURE
& ASSOCIATES

Don Day

PROJECT OWNER
OFA LTD

0 E Lousere SC
VicKimrey Texas 70069

PROJECT NAME
Bulong Rehablitetion and Renovaoion
S0 W Man SC
Denison Texas 70020

COMVENTS

9/20/2022

FLOOR PLANS -
EXISTING &
DEMOLITION

HP-100




exa | Nauuyo)
£SnoT 5 Ol
Rec] uo(

oLE LOnE

177 v LIonRACUSH P

\
\

—~ )
N W
e /)| silalla
( — —
Q BLES

29G9Z ON "Bay 'x1.
Jalesys "g |elueq

NOILONYLSNOD HO
ONILLINY3d “TVAOUddY
AHOLVINO3Y 404 1ON
SININNDO0A MIINTH
WIH3LNI

O \!
~ Lo
LQQ(L,, NV @A

) y

SALVIDOSSY 8
JHLOALHOHY HIIVIHS HINAO LO3rOHd INVN LI OHd

AN

9/20/2022
EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS -
DEMOLITION

HP-101

/
i
\
D)
<
S
),

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

\\\\\\\\/ \\\\\\\\\\\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ I8 O O O
HHHHHHHHKH ~ - HH HHHHHHHHH N /28 P O
~N e H H Tttt rrrt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt el
I O ~ - N A [ \ / HHHHHBHHHEBHEHHHEHAEHHEHKEH A [ I O A O O S R
~ - .| -
I O O O N _ FHHHHHAEHHHHH N\ / rHHHHHHHAHRHRRHHEHHEH I I O I I 1 O O
HHHHHHH Y ~ e N A [ N/ N ) I I a-ds4dq4d g4I A A AHAEAE AP AP IR Y
~N - | | X ||
HHHHHHHH > A o Oy O R 0 O 0 I A A o O O o I A o O A 0
HHHHHHHH 7 > Iy O / N\ N O O O O O I8 o o I A o A I
HHHHHHHH ~ ~ H O HHHHH / \ HHHHHHHHHHH HHHHH Lo N P HHHHHKE s I A 6 A 0
HHHHHHH Y 7 S O HHHHHHHH / N I 1 O 6 Lo d ~ - e Y o A I A 1 I A B I
~ - 1
R - ~ HHHHHHHHHHH 7 \-HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH H e e ~ - HHHHHH e A A O O O
e ~ H i
~N e H
HHHHHHH 1 HAHHHHAEHHHAEHEAEHAEH HH Y N _ [y R i N4 -4 HHHHEHHAHHHAHEHEAEHHEHAEHHEH
HH -4 - AHHHAHHHHH A HHHHHHHAEHBEEHH T H H -H-HHHHHHHAHAHKHKHH Ny N N N O O G (= A O ~N e I I A (O -t -4 -+-H4-<+HHHHHHHHHHHAHBHEBHEKBFHK
~N - H
o N 6 O HAHHHHAEHHHAEHEBEHAEH HH Y > [y R i N4 -4 HHHHEHHAHHHAHEHEAEHHEHAEHHEH
A AN [ I A A I N O I O e ~N ()
HHdH _ N HHHHHH -HHHHHHEFHHHHHAHHHAHHHEHRHH
- - - +H+H+--H+H+++-H+HH+HH+HHHHHHHHH -~ r+HH+H+-AH+HHHHHHHHHHKHHH H - M- H+H+HH+HHH+HHHHHHHH H - H - ~ I N N | 4T g 49 4 449 T=<<4 H4HHAHAHHHHHEAHHEHHEHEAEBKEKFEK
- ~ [
8 A O O I I 0 6 i HHHH _ ~ [ I O I --HHHHHHHHH A HEHHEHEHAEH
Ny N ) B B B SRSl E .- I T - H-H - H D 4 -4 4 -4 HHEHHHBHBHEHEH - ~ 1
4 H _ N HHdHH 4 4 I HH H H

INFILL MATERIAL TO BE REMOVE, OPENING PREPARED

FOR REPLACEMENT WINDOW, TYP.
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[

/
N
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
I

|| R L RN z R e Y
| T e T EHHL LT shlpiaisiskeiniiisisiaiakeininl @) A A A L
TR R A L UL = U piihhish skl

inlzizizicinn=:S PN MHHeHAHAAAH0HM O A A0 AH0n - Sizizizizizizininizizisiziziziziziziniaizls sizizizisizininisinintn HoHAM HonHAHOHAA

inipiatgigininh - S alpiigipialigipinipinh siigipigiaigipiainiaigigininiaty @) piaipiyiyipiyigtyiyipiyiniyininininiainininiy inipipiniininiyiniainiy gigiyinll piyigiyipiyiyipl

i e . TN sEaininipinininininn siipinininipinininipinagininanny = pigipigigigigigisipigipiipigipisiginipizinin igisipigipigipinipiipin L sigipinigiginigigl

HHHHHHH b= —H U HHHHHHH Y L I HH H E Y HHEHHHEHHHHEH HHHH HHHHHHHHEH
HHHHHAAHHHAAAAA HAHHAAAAAHAHAAAAHAAHAA AR A A A A A A A O HHHAHHAAHAARRAAAAARAAAAR] HHHHHAHHHARA] HHHHHAAAAAAA "HHHHHHHHH
R z I
I L o R HHHHHH R HHHHHHHHHH ]

L HHHHHHHEH U HHHHH > bbbty AL HH Y ipigipipipipipiniyinial A HHE

| [t A A T < I O
. I W\, s e ey HHHHHHHHHHH] HHHHHHEHHT

w e pah i isisiaiaiaiaipletetyty L LY piyiaipdetpiphyigd

I — T HHH HHH HHHHHHHHHHHH] HHHHHHHHHHHH U HHHHH

il sizisiniainiziniaininiininininininininininin sizizininininininininln sinizisininininininln AR nnnnnn

x| = B e e —— U ee——=T ipipipigipupigipinigipiy Apipupigipupininiy

o HHHHHHHHHHH

Z| > HHHEHHH S 7 HHHHHH HHEHHEHHHEHH HHEHHHHEHH

)

EXST. MODERNIZED WINDOW TO BE REMOVED, OPENING

PREPARED FOR REPLACEMENT WINDOW, TYP.
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[

e e ihhiiisaisisisislsinininininininininininininl pizizizizizizizininizinl aisialnizininininininin Iyisialslzislalisiy
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ igupnEnEnEpE Ay nEn Sy Ay n e Ay UL L L e e e e e e e e e e e e e
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ \HHEHHHH A HHHHHHHEHHEHHHHE HH HHHHHHAABERSYA HHHHAHHH AR HH A HHEH

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ s D] L e I I O I O I I A I I
H Eel e R e e e e A e e e e e e e e A A N N \ / =Eaisinluln ~ ~ sizizizizininln
sussliniizinizinicinicisininicinininininininintininininlntnln \ / isizizininin >~ - siuisinininlnin
pis===giginipigisininigisintninininininininininininintnininti \ / inisinininind ™~ ~ sisiginiaininini

EXST. MODERNIZED WINDOW TO BE REMOVED, OPENING

PREPARED FOR REPLACEMENT WINDOW, TYP.
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[

INFILL MATERIAL TO BE REMOVE, OPENING PREPARED

FOR REPLACEMENT WINDOW, TYP.
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
[
[
I
I
[
[
I
[

[

[

\/

/\

[
MODIFIED ANGLED MIXED-MATERIAL
STOREFRONT TO BE DEMOLISHED.

S S o O o / \ AN A O O 8 1 O O 1 O 6
HEEEEHAAHAAAA A A A A E A HHHHHH A / \ HEHHHHHHHHHAHHHHHHHHHEHHHBH HAEHHHAHAAHAA A A A A A A H A HEHHHH
HO OO0 nAHAAAFHAAAAHAHAHAHAHAH / \ HHHAHHHAAAHAHAHAHAHAHAHAH HAOHHHAAA AR A A A A A HAH A HHH A
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ / \ sEsininicininicieininicinictnininininisinininicininininlisinlininintnininininlc=linintnininininisininintninintnintE
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ , . i e e e e ey e et e e e et e e e e Y Y e e
gi=i=izizizici=i=i=i=S=iainisinininininicininicinininininindi / \ Izisizizisinigisialisizizisinisisinisininiainlsinlin izizigiginipinisininlnizininl =igigizizizizisinisininisinialniniinl
HH / \ dl |

ssssgipipipinipininnnininininipininipinipininininuninipint / \ inipipipigigipipipipipipipanipipipagipigipunipin ipipipigipipipugipgy P siaipinipinipipipipipipipipnpigipipt
L EEE Y i i / \ Egipipipipipipininininipipipipipininininininininl EpigEpipipipipipeaigisagint =it
| / s E R EHE A E L PP DAL T
R T Y i i L e e e e e e e e L P e L U

5 I A I [ I o O A I N ~ ~ A A A O A O O O A N R S 0 R 6
M Il ~ o~ [ / ~ -

0 I A A H HHHHHHHHH ~ ~ HHHHAHHAHAHAAHHAHAHAHAHAHAHA A A HHHHHEHEHHEHEAHH
11 %\ ~ / ~ -

g e e e e e A M M / sinEninininEnlEl ~ - sisEuinEniuinEniniciniininininicicicininininiinininininlnininintnl
0y e i e e e e ey e [ N I I S A ~N - I S A O
EEEE / N

S S O o O I HHHHHHHH P ~ HHHAHHHHAHHHHAHHAHAH A A A HEHEHHHHHEHHEHEHEH
Ay [ A / Ay - ~ N N A O
punnnlnEnEninEninEninicisicinininininininisicinininEninlnlE - ~

1/4" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION - DEMOLITION

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ / I A O I O O
1 O N A 6 5 I O O
N A A I QO 4T HHHHHHHHHHHHHHEHHHAEH
1 O A S O O o
N O O O I 2 O O
M M M H HHHHHHAHHAHHHAHHHHHAHA A A HHHHEHHEHHH HHHHHHHAHHHAHHHH A“H“ ““““““““
1 O A S G O O o
M M M H H-HHHHHHAHHAHHHAHHHHHA A A HHHH A HHHH e HHHHHHHNA H“ ““““““““
HHHHHHHH ~ e H HHHHHAHHAHAHHHHHHAHH A A A MHMHHMAMHAHAAHAAHAAHMHHMHAHAHAHHMHHHHEHEHB

~ -
I 6 ~ _ N O O O
HRERER RN RN ~ - AR A AR AR AN RN ER
~ -
I 6 ~ - N O O O
~ -
HHOHHHHHH - O O
I I I 6 R I 6 N 0 A O I o I I I o 6 A 0 0
- ~
8 I O O - ~ O O O
- ~
I O _ N N O O
HHHHHHHHKHHEHA - ~ H--HH-HHHHAHHHHHHH A A A HHH A A A M HH A A A HHHHH HH HH
- ~
I O _ ~ N O O O
8 O O O N A B 9% A O O
O O I I U A I iy gy A O O O
8 O O O 5 O O O o
O O I A [ O O O O
O O 5 R I A O (O
8 O O O HHHHHHBEHHHHHBY A O
O O o A O O N 0 A O O O
8 I O O g > [ O O O
I O ~ ~ N O O O
~ ~
8 I O O N _ O O
HHUHHHHHHHHEH ~ - 8 I O I o I I o 6 A S 6
~ -
8 I O O ~ - O O
~
I O > N O O O
HEHHHAHAHAHHHEHAHHAN - ~ H HHHHHAHHAHAHHHHHHAHH A A A MHMHHMAMHAHAAHAAHAAHMHHMHAHAHAHHMHHHHEHEHB
- ~
I O _ N N O O O
RN RN - ~ g i e e e e e
- ~
I 6 O ~ ~ N O O O
IiNERENERREERR RN - ~ e e e e e e ey e e e

MIXED-MATERIAL

[
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
\\
\
\\
MODIFIED ANGLED
T+ STOREFRONT TO BE

DEMOLISHED.
/

[ [ [ [
[ [ [ [
[ [ [ [
[ [ [ [
[ [ [ [
‘ [ ‘ [ ‘ [ ‘ [
[ [ [ [

‘ I ‘ I ‘ I ‘ I
e ——
EAST ELEVATION - DEMOLITION

1/4" = 1'-0"

3

INd 9G:61-L ¢202/12/6




29G9Z ON "Bay 'x1.
Jalesys "g |elueq

NOILONYLSNOD HO
ONILLINY3d “TVAOUddY
AdOLVINO3Y ¥O4 1ON
SININNDO0A MIINTH
WIH3LNI

AN N
DO

\ J A J
N IPIA] QDN
~ UG/ L( </ |

S3LVIOOSSY 8

JdNLOJLHOYY H3dVIHS

~
(AL
LIV

P
/\

o
M QNG Ve ™
OL ¢ | SO

A
/

Rec] o]
Al v

dINAO 103MOdd

UONEAC

~
( \]i oV e
— AN /\\,\ [ NANDY || N

JAVN 103rOdd

e

PROPOSED
SCOPE OF WORK

9/20/2022
HP-102

At rrrr N e
At rtrtrrrr N Ve
Tttt rtrtrr N Ve
OO nrn AN e
Tttt rtrrr N Ve
ATt rtr e N Ve
mEnEninEnEnEnEnEnEninEinEnEE N e
At N Ve

S G e o B | B | B B e I B

%

EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS NOTES:

2) AREAS OF DAMAGE OR DETERIORATION OF THE EXISTING BRICK OR MORTAR SHALL BE REPAIRED CONSISTENT WITH ACCEPTABLE PRACTICES OUTLINED

BY THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIORS STANDARDS FOR REHABILITATION.
REGISTER, BUT IS LOCATED AND CONTRIBUTING TO A NATIONAL REGISTER AND LOCAL HISTORIC DISTRICT AND SCOPES OF WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH THE

4) 501 W MAIN ST. DATES TO 1884, WITH MODIFICATIONS INDICATED IN 1960 AND 1970. 501 W. MAIN ST. IS NOT A LANDMARK OR LISTED ON THE NATIONAL
REQUIREMENTS OF THOSE DISTRICTS AND THEIR REGULATIONS.

3) FINAL COLOR SELECTIONS FOR THE WINDOW FRAMES, STOREFRONT PANELS, TRIM AND TIE ROD CANOPY SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO AND APPROVED BY

1) EXISTING BRICK COLOR TO REMAIN INTACT, NO PAINTING OF THE BRICK IS PROPOSED AS PART OF THE SCOPE OF THIS WORK.
THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD PRIOR TO EXECUTION AND USE.

EXTENT OF PREVIOUS MODIFIED
STOREFRONT AND FLOOR SLAB.
NEW INFILL WOOD FRAMED WALL W/
WOOD PANEL FINISH AND TRIM.

FIXED GLASS WD. WINDOW UNITS.

CONC. TOPPING SLAB AS-NEEDED
TO EVEN OUT DEPTH OF CONC. AT

PORCH.
EXST. CONC. WRAPPED COL. TO

REMAIN.

1/4" = 10"

NORTH ELEVATION - DEMOLITION

)

1/4" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION - DEMOLITION

2

STOREFRONT IMPROVEMENTS - PLAN

1/4" = 10"

4

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

EAST ELEVATION - DEMOLITION

Q

\\\\\ - = - -
CLL T 1
HHHHHHHHHHHHHAHAHH =
. HHHH . . . . ~
\\\\\ [ [ - <~

3

INd 9G:61:L ¢20¢2/12/6




£O0CL sexe | MaUUOA
9ORS £ORHC 9o eesro] 4 O OCOGE Sexe | Uosiu(]
sexe | Uosiue(] Rec) uo( S BN M 10C
NS UBA 189 Hh L7 v UorBAOUB PUB Uorenjoe ey Buping
SALVIOOSSY 8

JdNLOJLHOYY H3dVIHS dINAO 103MOdd JAVN 103MOdd

29592 ON "Bay X1
Jalesys "g |elueq
NOILONYLSNOD HO
ONILLINY3d “TVAOUddY
AdOLVINO3Y ¥O4 1ON
SININNDO0A MIINTH
WIH3LNI

9/20/2022
PROPOSED
SCOPE OF WORK,
DETIAL VIEWS
HP-103

SINGAANOO

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

EAST ELEVATION - DEMOLITION

1/2" =1'-0"

2)

N
:@l.O/
F.O// \:—‘O"1
P -
W/l €-.0
/b 1 -0 W/l €-.0
agiLe-.l
T I L | T 11
U e LU L N
\\\\\\\\ L L -
— BB ONNF /M M H o
\\\\\\\\ Han | m
- FrPrr- - = H - HH+HH H+H L O 4 L M
|l |  fF P B—=< - = —— M= —~ M= — ““ “ ﬂa
DN [ [ N [ N [ A L L : MM
\\\\\\\\ H 4 : 3 2 |5
\\\\\\\\\ M ) |
R ettt rrrtrrrtrrtr et C ] T N o o
EpiiEtipupipipipipupins gigigippipipipipipinipininupinny L s 5 \
O L JEl i - L
\\\\\\\\ -7 >
- ] - P “_
L AR BB — 4 MH N M= HMH — H I - \\ A
[l B I A e T e T e e e e | o e e e e e e e — \\ T
IR iNENEEE e EREn . L
g (@)
[l B I A e T e T e e e e | [ I N . I R '
I e O e N e N e N e N e N e N e [ AN S U NN D ) ) U S s S By U N NN AN [ ] Y N
\\\\\\\\\\\ R HH B o
\\\\\\\\\\\\ (s _AM
““““““ N S S ) S S S ) S ) S S S SN O S S S e S Sy — V
\\\\\\\\\\\\ S HHHHEHHHAHEHHAHAHHT i
\\\\\\\\\\\ S HAHAHAHAHAHAHAHHEHH THHHH i
““““““ o - - - - M~ H M M HH H O+ OH T A A A H1
\\\\\\\\\\\ A e e I A I A A O R T A EnEnEnERl = u
D=
\\\\\\\\\\\\ sizisinisinisEsEsisEs s nEs eI S S EEE - HH o
81
©

INd 65:61:L ¢202/12/6










- 1‘1

o - il

B

















































16

Summary

Anwell-planned cleaning project is an essential step in
preserving, rehabilitating or restoring a historic masonry
building. Proper cleaning methods and coating treatments,
when determined necessary for the preservation of the
masonry, can enhance the aesthetic character as well as the
structural stability of a historic building. Removing years
of accumulated dirt, pollutant crusts, stains, graffiti or
paint, if done with appropriate caution, can extend the life
and longevity of the historic resource. Cleaning that is
carelessly or insensitively prescribed or carried out by
inexperienced workers can have the opposite of the intended
effect. It may scar the masonry permanently, and may
actually result in hastening deterioration by mtroducmk.,
harmful residual chemicals and salts into the masonry or
causing surface loss. Using the wrong cleaning method or
using the right method incorrectly, applying the wrong
kind of coating or applying a coating that is not needed
can result in serious damage, both physically and
aesthetically, to a historic masonry building. Cleaning a
historic masonry building should always be done using
the gentlest means possible that will clean, but not damage
the building. It should always be taken into consideration
before applying a water-repellent coating or a waterproot
coating to a historic masonry building whether it is really
necessary and whether it is in the best interest of preserving,
the building.

Selected Reading

Architectural Ceramics: Their History. Manufacture and
Conservation. AJoint Symposium of English Heritage and the
United Kingdom Institute for Conservation, September 22-25,
1994, London: English Heritage, [996.

Ashurst, Nicola. Cleaning Historic Buildings. Volunie One:
Substrates, Seiling & Investigation. Volume Tweo: Cleaning
Materials & Processes. London: Donhead Publishing Ltd., 1994,

Association for Preservation Technology. Special Issue:
Preservation of Historic Masonry. Papers from the Symposium
on Preservation Treatments for Historic Masonry: Consolidants,
Coatings, and Water Repellents, New York, New York, November
11-12, 1994. APT Bulletin. Vol. XXVI, No. 4 (1995).

Grimmer, Anne E. Preseroation Bricf 6: Dangers of Abrasive
Cleaning to Historic Buildings. Washington, D.C.: Preservation
Assistance Division, National Park Service, U.S. Department
of the Interior, 1979.

Grimmer, Anne E. Keeping it Clean: Removing Exterior Dirt,
Paint, Stains and Graffiti front Historic Masoir iy Buildings.
Washmgton D.C.: Presérvation Assistance Division, National
Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior, 1988.

Park, Sharon C., AIA. Preservation Bricf 39: Holding the Line:
Controlling Unweanted Moisture in Historic Bmlduw»
Washington, D.C.: Heritage Preservation Services, National Park
Service, U.S. Department of the Interior, 1996.

Powers, Robert M. Preservation Teclh Note, Masonry No. 3,
“Water Soak Cleaning of Limestone”. Washington, D.C.:
Prese-vation Assistance Division, National Park Service, U.S.
Department of the Interior, 1992.

Sinvinski, Valerie. "Gentle Blasting.” Old-House Journal. Vol.
XXIV, No. 4 (July-August 1996), pp. 16-19.

Weaver, Martin E. Consereing Buildings: A Guide to
Techniques and Materials. New York: John Wiley & Sons, Inc.,
1993,

Weaver, Martin E. Preservation Briof 38: Removing Graffiti from
Historic Masonry. Washington, D.C.: Preservation Assistance
Division, National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior,
1995.

Winkler, EM. Stone inn Architecture: Properties, Durability.
Third, completely revised and extended edition. Berlin,
Germany: Springer-Verlag, 1997.

Acknowledgments

Robert C. Mack, FAIA, is a principal in the firm of MacDonald
& Mack Architects, Ltd., an architectural firm that specializes in
historic buildings in Minneapolis, Minnesota.

Anne Grimmer is a Senior Architectural Historian in the Technical
Preservation Services Branch, Heritage Preservation Services
Program, National Park Service, Washington, D.C.

The original version of Preservation Briof 1: The Cleaning and
Waterproof Coating of Masonry Buildings was written by Robert C.
Mack, ATA. It inaugurated the Preservation Briofs series when

it was published in 1975.

The following historic preservation specialists provided technical
review of this publication: Frances Gale, Training Director,
National Center for Preservation Technology and Training,
National Park Service, Natchitoches, LA; Judith M. Jacob,
Architectural Conservator, Building Conservation Branch,
Northeast Cultural Resources Center, National Park Service, N.Y,,
NY; Robert M. Powers, Architectural Conservator, Powers and
Company, Inc., Philadelphia, PA; Antonio Aguilar, Kaaren Dodge,
JoEllen Hensley, Gary Sachau, John Sandor and Audrey T. Tepper,
Technical Preservation Services Branch, Heritage Preservation
Services Program, National Park Service, Washington, D.C.; and
Kay D. Weeks, Heritage Preservation Services Program, National
Park Service, Washington, D.C.

This publication has been prepared pursuant to the National
Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, which directs the
Secretary of the Interior to develop and make available information
concerning historic properties. Comments on the usefulness of
this publication may be directed to: Sharon C. Park, FAIA, Chief,
Technical Preservation Services Branch, Heritage Preservation
Services Program, National Park Service, 1849 C Street, N.W.,,
Suite NC200, Washington, D.C. 20240 (www2.cr.nps.gov/tps).
This publication is not copyrighted and can be reproduced without
penalty. Normal procedures for credit to the authors and the
National Park Service are appreciated.

Front Cover: Chemical cleaning of the brick and architectural ferra
catta frieze on the 1880s Pension Building, Washington, D.C. (now the
National Building Muscun), is showon lere in progress. Photo:
Cliristina Henry.

Pliotographs wsed to illustrate this Bricf were taken by Anne Grinner wiless
otherwise credited.

ISSN:)885-7016 Noveniber 2000



Historic Preservation Meeting
Staff Report =~
e SO~

Agenda Item
Receive a report, hold a discussion and take action on adding an awning to the exterior of 231
W. Main.

Staff Contact
Donna Dow, Historic Preservation Officer

ddow@cityofdenison.com
903-464-4452

Summary
e The applicant is requesting to add an awning to the building at 231 W. Man.

The awning has previously been approved but colors have changed..

Background Information and Analysis

The former Chase Bank building at 231 W. Main has been purchased and developed into retail and
offices. The owner would like to give the exterior a fresh look. They are planning to add an awning as
shown on the photograph.

This was previously approved but the colors have changed. The Sign Guidelines do not allow the
descriptors at the bottom of the awning but all other details seem to be appropriate.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval with awning for items meeting Sign Guidelines.

Prior Board or Council Action
The Historical Preservation Board has previously considered this item with different colors.

Alternatives
The Historic Preservation Board may table, recommend denial, or recommend approval with
conditions.

Proposed Motion

I make a motion to approve the addition of an awning to the exterior of 231 W. Main.



DFA,LTD
110 E. LOUISIANA STREET
MCKINNEY, TEXAS 75069
214-405-2493
don@mckinneygrand.com
June 20, 2023

CITY OF DENISON

RE: PAINT BUILDING EXTERIOR AND ADD ONE STOREFRONT DOOR TO 231
W. MAIN STREET

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

Please accept this letter of intent to update the exterior of the building locates at 231 W.
Main as shown on the attached Rendering and as described below.

e Paint the exterior of the building white as shown on the attached rendering. The
paint color is th